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DECLARATION' 

I, Carl Hisiro, hereby state: 

I. I am over eighteen years of age and have personal knowledge of the facts 
stated herein. 

2. My wife, Deborah L. Hisiro, owns a 2003 Saturn Vue with the Vehicle 
Identification Number 5GZCZ43D73S875236. She purchased the Saturn as a new car. 

3. On or about September 14, 2009, her Saturn vehicle began to experience 
VTi transmission related problems. The Saturn had approximately 88,700 miles on it 
even though the attached Saturn of Harrisburg Service Invoice says 81,622. 

4. On or about September 15,2009, I contacted Saturn of Harrisburg 
regarding the problems related to the VTi transmission on the Saturn vehicle and I set an 
appointment for September 17, 2009. 

5. On September 17, 2009, I drove the Saturn vehicle to Saturn of 
Harrisburg. From September 17,2009 to September 23,2009, Saturn of Harrisburg 
diagnosed and serviced the Saturn for VTi transmission failure. 

6. The document attached hereto as Exhibit I is a true and correct copy of a 
document that was created by the Saturn dealer regarding the VTi transmission failure. 
The Saturn dealer gave me this document on or near the date indicated on the document. 

7. The Saturn dealer serviced the transmission, and provided us a rental car 
while the Saturn dealer serviced the transmission. We had to pay nothing for the service 
to the transmission or the rental car. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Carl Hisiro 

Dated: ~ ~,2011 
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SATURN OF HARRISBUR<l 
A Sutliff Company 

POBooc88118 
1l!01_St 
Hon1oburg, PA 17106 
(717) 2S4-8888 
FAX: (717)-7 

SERVICE 
INVOICE 

.DATE/TIME IN: 9/17/2009 7:57 DATE/TIME OUT: 9/23/2009 13:51 
SA: KENNETH BROOKER III DOC CDUNT: 1 PAGE: 2 

"''''',v"'''''' L HIS IRD 01 5GZCZ43D73S875236 
7-~--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------
:LINE 4 D~.FOR BRAKE FLOSH $90.15, COOLANT FLOSH $65.45, 

.T.fIR<J.';ITLE .. BO.EY, CIJ!!A1.'" ~~5 

REPAIR' 1 MAINTENANCE (S) RE<;:DMMENDED 
DPCODE: M5306 SALE TYPE: INTE:RN1IL -

, 
'ERIMARY TECH: MARK RHOADES 

INT 

~----------------------,-------------------------------------------~------------

COMM: 

, . 

TECHNICIAN STATES THE NEW TRANS INSTALLED HAS 
A INTERNAL BELT NOISE 
NEW TRANS INSTALLED IS MNCING WHINING NDISE AS 
DRIVING-VERIFIED THE NOISE IS IN'!'ERNAI, BELT 
NOISE-REMOVED THE TRANS AND REPLACED THE CASE 
HALF-REINSTALLED AND DROVE ALL DK 

·1 CDVER ASSEMBLY, VARIABLE DRIVE AND DRIVEN POLLEY A 
.K7104 SALE TYPE: WARRANTY PA 

: .8.40 

i'm~I TECH: MARK RHOADES m ',P.(>,RTS : 4 . 

DESC FP QTY 
15234609 FLUID-A/T N 1 
15250985 FLUID-A/T N 2 
15297659 COVER ASM Y 1 
22737082 CORE-COVE N 1-

PRICE SALE TYPE 
W1IRRANTY PARTS 
WARRANTY PARTS 
W1IRRANTY PARTS 
WARRANTY PARTS 

WIT 
WIT 
WIT 
WIT 

.~:~----------------------~---------------------------~------~----------------
FLASHER - HAZARD WARNING - REPLACE 
REPLACED THE FLASHER BUTTON BEZEL 

1 FLASHER - HAZARD. WARNING - REPLACE 
~~~:~~ N1 7 50 'SALE TYPE: CASH - GM ;1 TECH: MARK RHOADES 

DEaC FP QTY 
22702075 BEZEL-ACS N 1 

PRICE SALE TYPE 
15.420 CASH - GM 

LINE TOTAL 

$42.50 

$15.42 

. $57.92 _" 1 ___ ~ ________________________________________ __ , ________ ' ___ ..: _____________ _ 

the line number denotes added operation. 

THE ONLY PASSING GRADE FOR ITS IS "COMPLETELY SATISFIED" Q16 

.(' ~ , 

~.~,' ; ~ 

Exhibit 1 
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DECLARATION 

I, Brian W. LeCloux, hereby state: 

I. I am over eighteen years of age and have personal knowledge of the facts 
stated herein. 

2. I own a 2003 Saturn Vue with the Vehicle Identification Number 
5GZCZ33D73S905930. r had purchased my Saturn as a new car. 

3. On or about August 11,2009, the VTi transmission on my Saturn failed. 
My Saturn had approximately 86,377 miles at the time. 

4. During the week of August 17,2009 Saturn of Green Bay diagnosed and 
serviced my Saturn for VTi transmission failure. 

5. The document attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of the 
document that was created by the Saturn dealer regarding my VTi transmission failure. 
The Saturn dealer gave me this document sometime during the week of August 17, 2009 
while Saturn of Green Bay diagnosed and serviced my Saturn for VTi transmission 
failure. 

6. The Saturn dealer serviced my transmission, and I had to pay nothing for 
the service to my VTi transmission. 

I declare under penalty of peljury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

DatedLtLt '\.£,9 ,2011 

{Jw; W.cU!£p 
Brian W. LeCloux .. 
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1 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

1 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 

2 SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

3 IN RE: MOTORS LIQUIDATION COMPANY, et al., 
f/k/a General Motors Corporation, et al., 

4 Debtors. 

5 

6 KELLY CASTILLO, et al., 

7 Plaintiffs, 

8 -vs- Chapter 11 Case No. 09-50026 (REG) 

9 GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY, f/k/a 
New General Motors Company, Inc., 

10 
Defendant. 

11 

12 GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY, f/k/a 
New General Motors Company, Inc., 

13 
Counter-Claimant, 

14 
-vs-

15 
KELLY CASTILLO, et al., 

16 
Counter-Defendants. 

17 

18 The deposition of L. JOSEPH LINES III was taken by 
the Plaintiff on Wednesday, August 17, 2011, at 

19 400 Renaissance Center, 23rd Floor, Detroit, 
Michigan, at 2:34 p.m. 

20 
APPEARANCES: 

21 LAKIN CHAPMAN, L.L.C. 
By: Mark Brown 

22 300 Evans Avenue 
Wood River, Illinois 62595-0229 

23 618.254.1127 
Appearing on behalf of the Plaintiffs. 

24 
Reported by: Cindy A. Boedy, CSR 4696 

25 Certified Court Reporter 

Cornerstone Court Reporting Nationwide Scheduling 
877.713.3377 www.comerstonedeps.com 
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1 ISAACS, CLOUSE, CROSE & OXFORD, L.L.P. 
By: Gregory R. Oxford 

2 21515 Hawthorne Boulevard, Suite 950 
Torrance, California 90503 

3 310.316.1990 
Appearing on behalf of General Motors. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

Cornerstone Court Reporting Nationwide Scheduling 
877.713.3377 www.comerstonedeps.com 
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1 I N D E X 

2 WITNESS 

3 L. JOSEPH LINES III 

4 Examination by Mr. Brown 

5 

6 

7 EXHIBITS (Attached) 

8 NUMBER IDENTIFICATION 

9 Ex. G Declaration 

10 Ex. D Complaint 

11 Ex. V Service Bulletin 

12 Ex. PP Service Bulletin 

13 Ex. B Stip of Settlement 

14 Ex. QQ Notifications 

15 Ex. RR New Special Reimbursement 

16 Ex. HH E-mails 

17 Ex. JJ E-mail 

18 Ex. KK Communication 

19 Ex. SS Series of E-mails 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

PAGE 
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PAGE 
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16 
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37 
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49 
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57 

59 

Cornerstone Court Reporting Nationwide Scheduling 
877.713.3377 www.comerstonedeps.com 
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-1\ 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 L . J 0 S E P H 

4 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

Detroit, Michigan 

Wednesday, August 17, 2011 

2:34 p.m. 

LIN E S , 

8 after having been first duly sworn to tell the 

9 truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 

10 truth, was examined and testified as follows: 

11 EXAMINATION 

12 BY MR. BROWN: 

13 Q. 

14 A. 

15 Q .. 

16 A. 

17 

18 Q. 

19 A. 

20 

21 

22 Q. 

23 

24 

25 A. 

.~ 

State your name for the record, please. 

Joe Lines, L-I-N-E-S. 

Is that your full name? 

It's actually Lawrence Joseph Lines III, but I go 

by my middle name, so it's Joe Lines. 

Where are you employed, Mr. Lines? 

Here in the Renaissance Center by General Motors, 

L.L.C., as an attorney on the General Motors 

Legal Staff. 

And if we refer to New GM today, we can have the 

understanding that that means General Motors, 

L.L.C.? 

That will be fine. 
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1 Q. 

2 A. 

3 

4 Q. 

5 A. 

6 Q. 

4" 7 

8 A. 

9 

10 Q. 

11 A. 

12 

13 

14 Q. 

15 A. 

16 Q. 

17 

18 A. 

19 Q. 

20 A. 

21 

22 Q. 

23 

24 

25 

5 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

How long have you been employed by New GM? 

Since July 10th, 2009, so approximately what is 

that, almost two years now? 

Little more than two years now. 

Little more than two years. 

Time flies. What's your specific title at New 

GM? 

My title is attorney in the litigation practice 

area. 

And where were you employed prior to New GM? 

At -- maybe we can agree on a company that was 

called General Motors Corporation which is now 

Motors Liquidation Company or Old GM. 

Very good. What was your title at Old GM? 

Attorney in the litigation practice area. 

So no change of title when you moved from Old GM 

to New GM? 

No, sir. 

How long were you an attorney with Old GM? 

I joined the staff in 1984, so approximately 25 

years. 

We will recycle some of the exhibits we used this 

morning with Mr. Buonomo, but I'd ask you to 

check through the pile. Exhibit LL is the 

Witness List and Summary of Anticipated 
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L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

I couldn't tell you specifically. GM's counsel 

prepared a draft of this document, and I provided 

comments and, you know, edits to the document. 

And so some of the documents would be words that 

I put in the document. I can't tell you 

specifically which ones. 

Okay. Have you had a chance to review Exhibit LL 

prior to your deposition here today in 

preparation for the depo? 

I didn't review it again in preparation for the 

deposition. Obviously, I reviewed it prior to it 

being exchanged with counsel with you. 

Have you reviewed it since it was produced? 

I don't believe so. 

I can probably guess what the answer to the next 

question will be, but is there anything in 

Exhibit LL that you would consider to be 

incorrect or inaccurate in any way? 

Not to my knowledge. 
-----------------------------------------------

Did you play any role in any negotiating or 

drafting of the bankruptcy sale agreement? 

MR. OXFORD: Bankruptcy sale agreement, 

23 you mean the ARMSPA? 

24 BY MR. BROWN: 

25 Q. I'm talking about the ARMSPA, the ARMSPA. 
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6 Q. 
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10 A. 

11 

12 

13 Q. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 A. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

8 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

I may have provided input into the document as to 

some aspects involving the dealer network 

restructuring and the phase-out of various GM 

brands, but in terms of negotiation with the UST 

or their counselor matters like that, no. 

At least one of the primary sections that we're 

asking Judge Gerber to interpret in this 

adversary proceeding is Section 2.3(a) (vii) of 

the ARMSPA. Are you familiar with that section? 

From this litigation, yes. I wasn't familiar 

with it at the time of its drafting and 

inception. 

That was my question. 

Did you play any role in either 

negotiating or discussing with treasury the types 

of liabilities that would be assumed by New GM as 

opposed to those that were retained by Old GM? 

Again, I think the only input I would have had, 

and I may have had some discussions with treasury 

officials or their counsel, would relate to the 

dealer wind-down agreements or the deferred 

termination agreements, and so there are certain 

liabilities that go with the dealer agreements. 

And I could have had discussions -- in fact, I'm 

sure I did have discussions -- with those 
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I 14 
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Ii 16 
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I' 
I' 
II 18 Q. 
Ii 

It 19 

20 

21 A. 

22 Q. 

23 

24 A. 

25 

9 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

individuals or entities about that specific 

topic. Other than that though, no. 

Did you have any discussions with U.S. Treasury 

or anyone on their behalf regarding whether New 

GM would assume any category of liabilities that 

might include the Castillo class action 

settlement? 

I did not participate in those, no, if they 

occurred. 

You were the Old GM in-house attorney who 

negotiated the Castillo settlement, correct? 

Yes, sir. 

And in addition to negotiating the settlement 

that arose from the Castillo litigation, you were 

the primary in-house attorney responsible for the 

underlying Castillo litigation as well? 

I think that's a fair statement, yes. 

And of course in that capacity, you were familiar 

with the claims that were asserted in the 

underlying Castillo class action? 

I believe so, yes. 

One of which was a claim for breach of express 

warranty, correct? 

I believe that was one of the allegations of the 

complaint, yes. 
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L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

1 (Exhibit G marked.) 

2 BY MR. BROWN: 

3 Q. I'm handing you Exhibit G. 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. Which is a copy of a declaration that you 

6 submitted in the underlying Castillo class 

7 action, correct? 

8 A. Yes, sir. 

9 Q. Attached to your declaration is a copy of the 

10 Saturn -- what's identified as the 2003 Saturn 

11 Warranty and Owner Assistance Information, 

12 correct? 

13 A. Yes, sir. 

14 Q. And in your declaration I think you refer to it 

15 as the Saturn Express Limited Written Warranty 

16 booklet for the 2003 Saturn VUE to which 

17 plaintiffs refer to that complaint, correct? 

18 A. Yes, sir. i-----+-----.-----_. ___ ~_._.~~. __ ._.'__. __ ~. __ .... _ .. __ .. _~ .. _~ 
19 Q. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

And so it was your position that the claims for 

breach of express warranty asserted by plaintiffs 

in the underlying class action were governed by 

the terms of the warranty booklet that you 

attached to your declaration? 

MR. OXFORD: I'm going to object to 

that question on the grounds that it calls for a 
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question. 

12 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

THE WITNESS: Well, let me try to maybe 

help this. The purpose for this affidavit as I 

recall and understand it was to put before the 

Court the warranty booklet that was the express 

limited warranty that was referenced in the 

plaintiffs' complaint. That's what paragraph 2 

is attempting to do. 
I-.--+------------.----.-------.----.. -... ~· ... -.-.~--

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

I 16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

As I recall from the pleadings that 

were filed in the matter, our position was that 

the claims advanced by the plaintiffs and the 

relief sought by the plaintiffs were outside the 

terms of this warranty. 

So as to your question, I don't know 

how I can answer it other than to say that the 

purpose of this paragraph 2 was to put this 

document before the Court so the Court could 

consider the terms of the document. I think it 

needed to be, you know, verified or attested that 

this was a true and correct copy of the express 

limited warranty. 
I~-il---------------------·--------·---

22 

23 

24 

25 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Stated maybe somewhat more simply, the warranty 

booklet that you attached to your affidavit is 

the warranty referenced in the Express Warranty 
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5 

13 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

Provision of the express warranty count of the 

plaintiffs' underlying complaint? 

MR. OXFORD: I'm going to object to 

that question on the grounds it lacks foundation 

as to what plaintiffs may have contended. It 

6 calls for speculation and in the form asked it 

7 invades the attorney/client privilege, and I'll 

8 instruct him not to answer. 

9 BY MR. BROWN: 

10 Q. 

11 

12 A. 

13 Q. 

14 

15 

16 

17 A. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 Q. 

Are you going to follow counsel's advice on that 

instruction? 

I think that's prudent, yes, sir. 

In paragraph 2 of your affidavit when you say 

warranty booklet to which plaintiffs refer in 

their complaint, to which portion of the 

plaintiffs' complaint are you referring? 

As I sit here, sir, I can't tell you which 

portion of their complaint. I know -- I can 

recall that there were references to warranty 

claims in the complaint, and so the purpose of 

paragraph 2 again was to get before the judge the 

document that came with the Saturn vehicle and 

was delivered to the customer as being the 

express limited warranty. 

If you could turn to paragraph 4 of Exhibit LL. 
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L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

r--------------------------------------------------, 
1 A. 

2 Q. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 A. 

9 

10 Q. 

11 

Yes, sir. Yes, I have it. 

You reference a booklet containing the terms of 

the standard repair warranty placed in each 

vehicles' glove box prior to the initial sale or 

lease of the vehicle. Would that include as an 

example the warranty booklet that you attached to 

your affidavit in Exhibit G? 

Yes, sir. Depending on the make and model year, 

yes. 

Please turn to page 6 of that warranty booklet. 

MR. OXFORD: Just without objecting on 

I
I 12 the grounds of ambiguity, there's two numbering 

13 systems in here. 

~ . __ ._ .. ______ .. __ M~.~.!~~_N~: __ Fa~~ __ en_o_u_g_~ 
15 BY MR. BROWN: 

16 Q. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

The document that you submitted as your affidavit 

was the court document numbered 24 in the 

underlying Castillo action, and then the -. they 

say -- the document that was filed has 18 pages. 

At the top it's page 5 of 18. 

MR. OXFORD: 5 of 18. You've got to 

figure out which convention to use. 

MR. BROWN: Fair enough. It gets a 

little confusing with this many numbers. 

MR. OXFORD: There's two pages of the 
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10 

16 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

Not asking whether you agree with that 

allegation. I'm asking you whether you recall 

that allegation was made. 

MR. OXFORD: The document speaks for 

itself. I mean if you're testing his 

recollection of what your document says, I'm not 

sure that's worth anything. You know what your 

own document says. You can argue it with the 

Court. 

THE WITNESS: I recall -- what I recall 

11 from the complaint and the litigation was there 

12 was no allegation that Saturn, General Motors, 

13 didn't comply by repairing the VTi transmissions 

14 within the terms of the express warranty, but 

15 that after the express warranty had expired, the 

16 customers were continuing to have problems, and 

17 the allegation was that those repairs outside of 

18 the warranty were also the liability of the 

19 company under a variety of theories as I recall. 

20 (Exhibit D marked.) 

21 BY MR. BROWN: 

22 Q. 

23 

24 

25 

Sir, I'm handing you Exhibit D, which is a copy 

of the original complaint in the underlying 

Castillo case. I would ask you to turn to 

paragraph BO, which is on page 16 of D. 
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L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

I r----------------------------------------------------------------, 

I 

1 

2 

3 

4'1 

I 

4 

5 

6 

f 
7 

8 

9 

10 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

80, okay, I have it. 

The first sentence of paragraph 80 alleges that 

any attempt by GM to repair detective VTi 

transmission would replace one defectively 

designed transmission with another defectively 

designed VTi transmission within the warranty 

period could not satisfy GM's obligation to 

correct defects under the warranty. Do you 

recall that allegation having been made? 

Not specifically, sir, no. 
'-----1-------------------------- ---__________ _ 

11 Q. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 A. 

24 

25 

In paragraph 6 of the witness disclosures, 

Exhibit LL, it says that plaintiffs' cause of 

action for breach of express warranty in the 

Castillo action did not assert violation of 

Saturn standard repair warranty, but instead 

asserted claims based on VTi transmission 

malfunctions that occurred after the applicable 

warranty period had expired or which otherwise 

were not covered by Saturn's standard repair 

warranty. In light of paragraph 80 of the 

complaint, do you stand by the statement in 

paragraph 6 of the witness disclosure? 

Yeah, I think so. I'm not aware of any 

circumstance where there was any claim for a 

vehicle that was within the warranty period that 
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6 A. 

7 

8 

9 

19 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

Paragraph 5 of Exhibit LL references Old GM's 

decision to voluntarily extend the warranty from 

3 years and 36,000 miles to 5 years or 

75,000 miles. How was that decision communicated 

to new customers? 

As I sit here today, I'm not certain, but I 

believe a bulletin was sent to dealers and I 

believe there was a communication sent to owners. 

(Exhibit V marked.) 

10 BY MR. BROWN: 

11 Q. 

12 A. 

13 Q. 

14 

15 

16 

17 A. 

18 Q. 

19 A. 

20 Q. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I'm handing you what's been marked as Exhibit V. 

Yes. 

Is Exhibit V the service bulletin that was shared 

with GM dealers regarding the increase in the 

warranty period on the VTi to 5 

years/75,000 miles? 

I believe it is the original one, yes. 

And it's dated March of 2004, correct? 

Yes. 

And do you believe that a similar communication 

was mailed to customers? Actually, I take that 

back. Strike that question. 

If you turn a few pages back in Exhibit 

V, specifically the fourth page, looks like a 

letter to Saturn customers sharing the same 
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information; is that right? 

20 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

MR. OXFORD: Read it before you sign on 

the same information. 

THE WITNESS: I was just going to say I 

don't know, Counsel, if all the information in 

the -- in the special policy itself is also 

contained in the letter. But, yes, that would be 

the typical course that a letter would be sent, 

and there's a copy of that letter explaining the 

special policy being sent to customers. I can't 

verify that everything in the special policies in 

the letter unless you want me to --

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. That's not necessary. The concept is that there 

was a letter explaining to customers that the 

warranty coverage was being extended. 

A. Yes, sir. 

(Exhibit PP marked.) 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. I'm handing you Exhibit PP --

A. Yes. 

Q. -- which I believe is another service bulletin 

essentially applying the policy in Exhibit V to 

2005 model year vehicles which didn't yet exist 

at the time that Exhibit V was created; is that 

Cornerstone Court Reporting Nationwide Scheduling 
877.713.3377 www.comerstonedeps.com 

09-00509-reg Doc 67-4 Filed 06/12/12 Entered 06/12/12 11:37:30 Appendix 17 - Marked
 Excerpts from Deposition of L. Joseph Lines    III    dated Aug Pg 16 of 50



/ 
\ i 

1 

2 A. 
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11 Q. 

12 

13 

14 A. 

15 

16 

17 Q. 

18 

19 

20 A. 

21 Q. 

22 

23 

24 A. 

25 

correct? 

21 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

Yes. My witness designation references the 

latest version which is 04020A which is Exhibit 

PP that you've just asked me about. That's 

correct. 

And then following the service bulletin in 

Exhibit PP, I guess it begins on page 4, there's 

a similar letter to customers informing them of 

this addition, correct? 

Yes, sir. 

Was any form of Exhibit V or Exhibit PP ever 

included in the glove box of the vehicle at the 

time of the initial sale? 

I think it would have been impossible to do so 

since the document wasn't created until after the 

vehicles were sold. 

Do you know anything about who was involved in 

the decision to implement the special policy 

adjustments that we see in Exhibits V and PP? 

Very generally, yes. 

Is there a procedure of approval that was 

necessary in order for the special bulletins in V 

and PP to be implemented? 

I'm not an expert in that area of the business, 

so I really don't want to speculate. I know that 
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22 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

these documents were prepared and approved and 

sent out, and I generally know the process that 

that goes through, but I really don't want to 

speculate further, because I'm just not versed in 

that end of the business. 

Is it GM's position that the warranty extensions 

described in Exhibits V and PP became assumed 

liabilities of New GM under the ARMSPA? 

I'd have to, I think, defer to Mr. Buonomo on 

that. I wouldn't really want to speculate 

without probably consulting with him and looking 

at the document, sir. 

MR. OXFORD: If it helps, Mark, I think 

it's undisputed that New GM has been honoring 

that 5/75 policy. I don't know if that solves 

your problem or not. 

MR. BROWN: Thank you. 

(Exhibit B marked. ) 

19 BY MR. BROWN: 

20 Q. 

21 

22 

23 

24 A. 

25 

Handing you Exhibit B which is a copy of the 

stipulation of settlement in the underlying 

Castillo class action. Do you recognize Exhibit 

B? 

Yes. Generally speaking, Counsel, I do. 

Obviously, it's a lengthy document, but it 
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26 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

Paragraph 11 of the witness disclosure describes 

Old GM's decision to begin reimbursing Saturn 

retailers for VTi repairs in accordance with the 

formula set forth in the settlement agreement 

prior to final approval of the settlement 

agreement? 

That is correct. 

Do you recall whose decision it was to begin 

honoring the settlement agreement prior to final 

approval by Judge Shubb? 

I don't recall a specific person. I can say it 

-- Excuse me. 

It was both executives at Saturn and at 

General Motors felt that it was the right thing 

to do for customer satisfaction reasons, but as I 

sit here, Counsel, today I can't give you the 

name of a person. But executives at both 

companies thought it was the right thing to do. 

By both companies, you mean Old GM and Saturn? 

Correct. 

Your recollection is that the principal motivator 

for that decision was that it was relating to 

customer goodwill? 

Exactly. The idea was that rather than have the 

customers waItt he-approval -p-rocess which we 
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19 Q. 
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21 A. 
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23 

24 Q. 

25 

27 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

thought would occur and hold onto their receipts, 

et cetera, it would be better to try to reimburse 

them quicker or in some cases where the customers 

perhaps couldn't afford to have their vehicles 

fixed because they didn't have sufficient 

resources it would help them get their vehicles 

repaired. 

If you could please turn to what's been labeled 

as Exhibit MM. We used it earlier with 

Mr. Buonomo today. 

I have it. 

Do you recognize Exhibit MM? 

I do, sir. 

Were you involved in any way in drafting Exhibit 

MM? 

I probably shouldn't say it this way. I'm sure I 

was, but I don't have a specific recollection of 

it, but I'm sure I was involved in it. 

But you don't recall what your involvement was at 

this point? 

I'm positive that I had input on the language of 

this document. How exactly that came about, I 

don't recall specifically. 

Is your understanding of MM, Exhibit MM, that it 

is a directive to Saturn retailers as of 
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L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

depending on whether you count Memorial Day. 

MR. OXFORD: Just so you know our 

position, Mark, the math has the 18th is the last 

to file an appeal. It's ten days after the last 

date upon which -- the last date after which the 

appeal period had expired, appeal period expired. 

It was actually June the 3rd because of Memorial 

Day, and you don't start counting under my 

interpretation of the language until May 18th, 

which is the day after the expiration of appeal 

rights. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Is it GM's position that prior to the effective 

date, no party to the settlement agreement had 

any obligations of any kind? 

A. That's certainly my interpretation. 

Q. So for example, turn to paragraph 12 on page 13, 

please. 

MR. OXFORD: We're on Exhibit B now? 

MR. BROWN: Yes, sir. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. 

A. 

Paragraph 12 on page 13. 

All right. 

I 24 Q. 

I 25 

Looks like the second full sentence not quite 

midway down says, quote, Upon entry of the 
, 
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judgment, each plaintiff and class member shall 

be deemed to have and by operation of the 

judgment shall have expressly waived and 

relinquished to the fullest extent permitted by 

law any and all provisions, rights, and benefits 

conferred by any law of the United States or any 

state of the United States or principle of common 

law that is similar, comparable, or equivalent to 

Section 1542 of this California Civil Code. 

Would you agree with me that regardless 

of whether the effective date had occurred, that 

as of the date of judgment, plaintiffs and class 

members had waived their right to assert rights 

based on Section 1542 of the California Civil 

Code? 

MR. OXFORD: I'm going to object to 

that question on the grounds it calls for a legal 

conclusion, and moreover it implicates as to the 

source of any understanding that the witness may 

have attorney/client communications with, and 

I'll instruct him not to answer. 

MR. BROWN: I'm not asking about your 

conversations with Counsel. I'm asking whether 

you understand the provision that I just read to 

constitute a waiver of the rights of class 
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--------, I 1 members as of the entry of the judgment to assert 

2 claims based on Section 1542 of the California 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Civil Code? 

MR. OXFORD: Same instructions. I 

think I know what you're trying to accomplish. 

Maybe I should talk to him about exactly what the 

source of the information --

MR. BROWN: If you want to talk to him 

about getting around the attorney/client 

privilege issue, then I'm fine with that. 

MR. OXFORD: Yes. 

(Off the record.) 

MR. OXFORD: Mr. Buonomo and I have had 

a discussion off the record. I'm going to let 

the witness respond to the question with the 

understanding that to the extent that there's 

the answer implicates the attorney/client 

privilege, that Mr. Brown won't argue that by 

answering Mr. Lines or GM is engaged in the 

broader waiver of the privilege. 

MR. BROWN: Agreed. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. I would 

answer your question by saying, yes, I think the 

second sentence of paragraph 12 that you have 

pointed out to me indicates that the class 
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members have waived their rights as a result of 

the judgment, and having you point out this 

paragraph to me would lead me to amend the answer 

I gave just a couple answers ago when you asked 

me if it was my view that the effective date in 

substance canceled obligations, all obligations 

or performance under this agreement. 

I would say I need to amend that answer 

by saying, no, it doesn't, because some of these 

things are keyed on the entry of judgment. So 

11 I'd amend my answer to that extent. 

12 BY MR. BROWN: 

13 Q. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

And another example would be on page 14 of the 

settlement agreement. Paragraph 3 describes an 

injunction that would enjoin class members from 

asserting similar claims pending final approval, 

and in my mind that would be another example of 

an obligation that is due prior to the effective 

date. Would you agree with that? 

MR. OXFORD: Well, the word "due" is 

typically used with respect to a monetary 

obligation. If what you're asking him is did he 

think that this injunction was effective prior to 

the occurrence of the effective date. 

MR. BROWN: Yes. 
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I' 1 

_________________________________________ L __ . _J_O_S_E_P_H __ L_I_N_E_S __ I_I-,I 

THE WITNESS: I would respond by saying 

I 2 yes, I would think based on paragraph 3 on page 

if" 

3 

4 

14 that the injunction would be effective prior 

to the effective date. 

5 BY MR. BROWN: 

6 Q. 

7 

8 A. 

9 Q. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

! 16 A. 

17 Q. 

18 

19 A. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Please turn to paragraph 14 of the witness 

disclosure. 

Yes. 

First sentence, paragraph 14, says that with 

respect to the stipulation of the settlement, 

neither Old GM or New GM ever intended that New 

GM would assume liability under the stipulation 

of settlement. Is that statement based on your 

personal knowledge or is that based on 

information communicated to you by Mr. Buonomo? 

I would say both. 

And what is the personal knowledge on which you 

base the first sentence of paragraph 14? 

I was involved in working with our staff in the 

period between the filing of the bankruptcy by 

Old GM and the emergence of New GM on July 10th 

in listing the stipulation of settlement as a 

rejected liability, if you will. And so it was a 

-- I viewed it as primarily a contract, if you 

will, but a litigation liability that would be 
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rejected in the proc -- in the bankruptcy process 

as that went forward. 

And so that's my personal knowledge of 

the intent by both companies that there would be 

no assumption of liability under the stipulation 

we've just been discussing. 

Are you referring to the database that listed 

contracts that would be rejected later? 

Well, I was involved in -- yes. There was a 

process where a form was filled out and one of 

the legal assistants that was in our office did 

it. And it was required basically that a lawyer 

assist her to make sure that for this type of 

situation where you had a litigation liability, 

if you will, that it was right. 

And so I assisted her in making sure 

that we put this particular stipulation of 

settlement and liability -- I don't want to say 

into the database. I think what she did, she 

actually listed it and then somehow uploaded it 

in the database. But, yes, basically, if I'm 

answering your question. 

Q. I think so. Thank you. 
c-L--~---------____ __ 

24 And who made the decision to include 

25 the Castillo settlement in the reject later 

~ 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
~--

16 

17 

18 

C/' 19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

portion of the database or to identify it as 

reject later in the database? 

That would have come from discussions with Mr. 

Buonomo, but it really wasn't a decision because 

all litigation liabilities of that type were not 

going to be retained. 

And so it fell into a category and so 

there really wasn't a decision about this 

particular case. It just fell into a category 

and therefore was excluded. 

Q. And which category did it fall into that led you 

to that conclusion? 

A. It was a litigation liability. And it wasn't 

necessary for the ongoing success of the new 

company and, therefore, it would be excluded. 
~~~--~~--~-..• ----. 

(Exhibit QQ marked.) 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. I'm handing you Exhibit QQ. Do you recognize 

Exhibit QQ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. What is QQ? 

A. It is a notification that went to Saturn 

retailers sent by New GM in the parlance that 

we've been talking about it to notify them to 

discontinue the percentage designations that were 
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contained in Exhibit MM when making goodwill 

adjustments for Saturn VTi repairs. 

Who drafted Exhibit QQ? 

I would have drafted certain parts of this. The 

business people, whether that was Mr. Rusk or 

others, I see he's shown on the second page here. 

I don't know, Counsel. But businesspeople would 

have provided input. I would have drafted some 

of this and, you know, put together the document. 

I mean, to be fair specifically, the 

businesspeople would not have had the familiarity 

I see on the second full paragraph -- or excuse 

me, the first full paragraph on the second page 

of this document to describe the 363 sale and 

those issues. So although I don't have a clear 

recollection of it, I think it's probably pretty 

fair to say I drafted those provisions. 

• 

I L-y--_. _____ ._._. __ .. ____ . ____________ . __ . _____ _ 

18 Q. Do you know what prompted the creation of Exhibit 

19 QQ? 

I think two things, that there was a desire by A. 
(/' 20 

21 the businesspeople since there was no obligation 

22 of the company to continue the percentages set 

23 forth in MM on these goodwill adjustments to so 

24 advise the dealers. And then secondly, there was 

25 the scheduled sale to the Penske organization of 
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Saturn which was supposed to close in a couple of 

days after this. 

So the idea being after that date it 

would be up to the Penske organization's new 

Saturn organization to determine how and in what 

way it wanted to provide goodwill adjustments to 

its customers. Because it was buying the 

company, it would take over the responsibility 

for that car park, if you will. And so I believe 

the view was that prior to that sale closing 

now ultimately it didn't close, but prior to that 

sale closing, we needed to clarify this issue and 

then the Penske-led Saturn or the Penske-owned 

Saturn organization would be responsible for 

determining what sort of customer goodwill they 

would like to pursue with their customers. 

Exhibit QQ actually, there are two dates: 

September 28th of 2009 and then above that 

September 29th of 2009. 

I see both dates on the document, yes. 

Do you know which of those two dates Exhibit QQ 

actually issued? 

I ;~ :: ---~d:n::::t:::~ng is that Fritz Henderson 

25 announced on September 30th of 2009 that the sale 

~ 
Cornerstone Court Reporting Nationwide Scheduling 

877.713.3377 www.comerstonedeps.com 

09-00509-reg Doc 67-4 Filed 06/12/12 Entered 06/12/12 11:37:30 Appendix 17 - Marked
 Excerpts from Deposition of L. Joseph Lines    III    dated Aug Pg 29 of 50



'/ I 

1 

1 2 

3 A. 

40 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

of Saturn to Penske was not going to take place. 

Is that your memory? 

I believe September 30th is the date, yes. 
-i------
4 Q. 

5 

6 

7 

8 A. 

9 

if' 10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 Q. 

25 

When you were involved in drafting Exhibit QQ, 

were you aware that either the Penske sale had 

fallen through or that it was likely to fall 

through at that point? 

Absolutely not. To the contrary. It may 

actually have been a conference room on this 

floor actually. I was aware that all the deal 

documents -- because I worked on some of the 

issues involving the dealers, all the documents 

and all the necessary materials for the signing 

to take place Friday morning, the 30th, were up 

here and people were ready to go and make the 

announcements that the signing had occurred. 

So my view and my understanding was 

that it was all systems go. I was actually in 

Washington the morning of the 30th and got a call 

that said in essence bad news, Mr. Penske has 

backed out. We'll be announcing that the sale 

won't go forward. So it was a huge surprise to 

me and many people unfortunately. 

When was the decision made to stop following the 

procedure described in Exhibit MM? 
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MM, as I recall, it was somewhat of an intricate 

process that took place over a couple of weeks. 

I don't know if I could give you a date. But 

there were discussions. People were sending 

e-mails, and there was discussion over the issue, 

and finally this document was drafted and put 

out. 

I think to be fair, I mean we believed 

it was appropriate that this was issued prior to 

the 30th as I said before. So the Penske 

organization would then have its responsibility 

with respect to customer goodwill and make a 

decision on what it wanted to do going forward. 

Was the concept described in QQ something that 

was discussed with Penske? 

I do not believe so. I have no knowledge of 

that. 

When you drafted the portions of Exhibit QQ, were 

you aware of plaintiffs' declaratory judgment 

action that had been filed at that point? 

MR. OXFORD: I think that assumes a 

fact not in evidence or at least one I can't 

remember as to the filing date for the action. 

Wasn't it in early October? 

MR. BROWN: It was in August. 
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MR. OXFORD: If that's right, I stand 

THE WITNESS: Let me answer the I 
question this way. I don't specifically recall) 

that, but if you're representing it was file~ 
August, I must have been, but I don't 

The last sentence of the next to last paragraph 

says, Thus GM administrative message G20717 is no 

longer effective and no reimbursement of the VTi 

transmission-related expenses should be made or 

will be honored by GM pursuant to the terms of 

the prior policy outlined in that message. 

Administrative message G20717 is the same thing 

as Exhibit MM that we've been referring to, 

correct? 

Yes. 

So prior to the date that Exhibit QQ was issued, 

would it be fair to say that administrative 

message -- the administrative message in Exhibit 

MM was in effect at New GM. 
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I'm going to say yes, butlas I said, 

of this was somewhat of an ~ 
the creating 

process, and 

as I recall, one or two of the CAC centers --

there were several around the country -- may have 

gotten a little bit out ahead of the sending of 

this message and were not following anymore the 

provisions of MM. And so they may have stopped a 

few days before this was actually sent out to the 

dealers. But generally speaking, I would agree 

with what you just said. 

So aside from one or two Strike that. 

How many CACs are there? 

You know, it has changed over time. I know in 

2009, which was this time frame, I believe there 

were at least three, but there may have been 

more. So I'm going to say that's speculation on 

my part, but there were several. 

And aside from the one or two that may have 

stopped following the procedures in Exhibit MM, a 

day or two prior to the issuance of QQ would you 

say that Exhibit MM was the policy of or 

represented the policy of New GM at that time? 

MR. OXFORD: I think you may have 

misstated it inadvertently when you say -- I 

think you said within a day or two. I think 
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there's actually documentation indicating that 

there was some understanding more than a day or 

two before on the part of some of these people 

that the policy wasn't effective because of the 

bankruptcy. 

MR. BROWN: Right. I do want to talk 

to him about the documentation, but that is what 

I heard him to say, but maybe I misheard your 

testimony. 

THE WITNESS: Whether it was a day or 

two I can't say, but it was sometime prior to the 

issuance of QQ. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Prior to the issuance of QQ, which announces that 

the policies in MM will be stopped, was there 

ever a document created at New GM saying that New 

GM would be following the procedures announced by 

Old GM in Exhibit MM? 

19 A. Certainly not that I'm aware of. I'm aware of no 

20 such document. 
I---t----------------.--.----.-------------~ 

21 MR. OXFORD: I'm sorry, can I have the 

22 question and answer back? 

23 (Record read back.) 

24 MR. OXFORD: I'm sorry, one more time. 

25 BY MR. BROWN: 
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Was there to your knowledge ever a 

document created or an instruction given that 

absent instructions to the contrary New GM would 

be following Old GM's policies? 

I'm not aware of any document created that says 

absent to the directions to the contrary New GM 

will be following Old GM's policies. As to this 

issue, I'm not aware of any such document. 

Or as to the policies in general? 

I'm not -- as to policies in general, I'm not 

aware of any such document. 

Would you agree that as of July 9th, 2010, the 

document describing what New GM's liabilities 

would be was the ARMSPA? 

I wouldn't be comfortable commenting on that 

without carefully reviewing that and the sale 

order and frankly consulting with expert 

19 bankruptcy counsel. 

r--;;-~- okay~-~~-~--;ul ;~"7:"nders~:nd~ you-~-~~-;;~r·. 

I 21 As of July 9th, 2010, are you aware of any 

-{ I 22 

I :: 

documents other than the ARMSPA or the sale order 

that would describe what New GM's either 

obligations or policies would be as of July 9th, 

2010? 
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I'd like to answer this way. There may be 

others. Those two would be the primary ones I 

would think of. But not having been involved in 

that transaction, I need to say there may be 

others that I'm not aware of. 

That was really my only question and I can ask 

what you're aware of. 

Would it be fair to say that Exhibit QQ 

is the first document created by New GM 

describing any policy relating to the VTi 

transmission to your knowledge? 

I believe it was -- I believe it to be the only 

document that would have been distributed to 

14 Saturn retailers advising of this policy. 
~---r-----------

15 

GI" 16 

17 

19 Q. 

20 

21 

22 A. 

23 

24 

25 Q. 

Internally there would have been 

documents that would have been created prior to 

this that would have spoke to changing the 

policy. 

Perhaps those are some of the e-mails we'll maybe 

talk about here in a few minutes. Is that the 

sort of think you were talking -­

Could be. Also I believe there's some 

presentations and things of that nature that may 

have spoke to this issue. 

I don't recall seeing any presentations. What 
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document. Do you know which document is being 

referred to there? 

3 A. From the context of this e-mail and the timing, 

as I said, it was an intricate process. I would 4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

think it is Exhibit QQ, the document that 

ultimately was sent out on September 28. We're 

here September 4th as I read the legend on this 

e-mail. That would be my assumption that is the 

document they are referring to. 

Q. Did anyone from Joe Rigsby's team get in touch 

with you regarding Exhibit QQ, do you recall? 

A. Well, I know that at some point I received a 

draft of the document that I provided input to. 

Without having e-mail or something that you could 

show me who specifically would have done it or 

not, I just can't say if it was someone on 

Rigsby's staff or Rigsby himself or somebody 

else, but I know ultimately I did receive a draft 

of the document and provided input to it. 
----+---------------

20 

21 

22 

23 

, 24 

Q. Are you aware of any discussions with Penske 

about the decision to implement the new policy 

described in Exhibit QQ? 

A. I am not. 

(Exhibit JJ marked.) 

! I 25 BY MR. BROWN: 
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I'm handing you Exhibit JJ. Have you seen 

Exhibit JJ before? 

I believe I have, yes. 

The bottom e-mail in Exhibit JJ appears to be an 

e-mail from Scott Lawson to Joe Rigsby. Do you 

know who Scott Lawson is? 

Scott is an executive in the CAC organization, 

his exact title I don't know, but he is a fairly 

senior executive in the CAC organization. 

Who's Brian Hoglund or Hoglund? 

BOY, I just don't know. The name is familiar to 

me, but what his position is I don't know. 

Who is Joseph Fitzsimmons? 

Similarly, Joe was an executive in the CAC, 

customer aftercare organization. 

Mr. Lawson in his email to Mr. Rigsby says he's 

heard some feedback through Hoglund and 

Fitzsimmons that there might be some concern with 

Saturn VTi decision from Penske and suggests you 

not send the dealer communication until 

Fitzsimmons approves. Are you aware of any 

concern with the VTi decision from Penske? 

I just am not, Counsel. 

When Mr. Lawson suggests not sending the dealer 

communication until Fitzsimmons approves, do you 
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I , , 
I 
! , 
I 

41 
i 
I 

1 

2 

3 A. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

know whether that refers to either Exhibit QQ or 

RR? 

I would say it would have to refer to Exhibit QQ. 

Given the timing as I see, these e-mails are 

September 18th about ten days before the Exhibit 

QQ, and that's consistent with my memory. I've 

used the word iterative several times where 

people were deciding, thinking about what the 

right thing to do was, and that timing to me 

seems right. So I'm virtually certain they are 

11 talking about what became Exhibit QQ. 
....,...--1----. 

12 Q. Were you aware in September of 2009 that people 

13 

br 14 

were requesting that the policy described in 

Exhibit QQ not be shared at that time pending 

15 input from Penske? 

16 A. Certainly not Penske. What I was aware of -- and 

17 I've got to for clarity make this statement. I 

18 was spending almost all of my time either in 

19 Washington or on a plane back and forth to 

20 Washington dealing with some issues as it relates 

21 to the dealer wind-downs and phase-outs of the 

22 brands. 

23 So what I recall was the direction was 

24 to send out what became QQ and that various GM 

25 executives were weighing in on when and how to do 
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that. And there wasn't a decision to do it or 

not do it, and then the decision was collectively 

made. I made comments to or made input to the 

documents itself and then it was sent out. 

That's the recollection I have of the process. ,-L-+-____________ _ 

12 Q. 

13 

14 

15 

16 A. 

17 

18 

Mr. Fitzsimmons' e-mail at the top of Exhibit JJ 

says he just got off a call with Kevin W. Do you 

know who that would be? 

I believe it to be Kevin Williams, who at the 

time was the head of, I believe, our quality 

organization. 

And Kevin asked that the dealer communication be 

held until next week because he wanted to run it 

by Mark and Fritz. Do you know who Mark and 

Fritz would be? 

I'm sure that Fritz is Fritz Henderson who was 

our CEO at the time. Mark. I don't know who 

Mark would be at this time. 
h,..---j---------------------,----,------

19 Q. 

,fA. 20 

21 

22 

23 A. 

24 

25 

~ 

Were you aware in the September 2009 time frame 

that the decision to implement the policy in 

Exhibit QQ was something that was going to be run 

past Mr. Henderson? 

I don't know, Counsel, if I knew that 

Mr. Henderson was involved it the -- at this 

time. I did know Mr. Williams was involved and 
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6 Q. 
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,2 Q. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1
23 

I 

124 

25 

56 

L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August 17, 2011 

other executives were weighing in on the 

decision. I just don't know if I knew that Mr. 

Henderson was involved at that point. 

Let me ask it slightly differently. 

Sure. 

At some point slightly after this time frame in 

September 2009, did you come to learn anything 

about Mr. Henderson's involvement in reviewing 

the policy that was ultimately articulated in 

Exhibit QQ? 

No. 

What I do recall, however, is following QQ being 

sent to the retailers, Mr. Henderson was one of 

the people who was determining or thinking about 

whether a different or new policy should be put 

in place once the sale to Penske had not gone 

forward and these persons would continue to be 

GM's customers, if you will. 

So I knew that Mr. Henderson had been 

involved in looking at that issue and given -- I 

think he'd given some direction. to the 

businesspeople that he felt, as I recall, it 

would be a good idea to offer some sort of policy 

to the Saturn owners subsequent to QQ going out. 

And so that direction in part led to Exhibit RR. 
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7 A. 
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9 

10 

11 

12 Q. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 A. 

19 

20 

l_2=--. 
22 Q. 

23 

24 A. 

25 
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Previously I asked you whether you knew' of any 

communications from New GM to Penske regarding 

the decision to revert to 5/75, and I think you 

said that you weren't aware of any 

communications. Am I correct in my understanding 

of your testimony in that regard? 

Again, I'm not aware of any. Again, I want to be 

clear. I was not a member of the Penske deal 

team, so I can't comment for what others may have 

said. I'm not aware of any documents or any 

communications. 

And that's fair enough. That's actually what I'm 

trying to clarify here is whether you're saying 

that if there were conversations, you don't have 

knowledge of them; or whether you're saying that 

you do have knowledge that there were no 

conversations? It's the former, correct? 

All I can say is to my personal knowledge, I am 

not aware of any. Whether some took place by 

others, I don't know of, I can't obviously 

comment on that. 

Do you know who the negotiators on the Penske 

sale -- potential sale were? 

The chief negotiator was a gentleman by the name 

of Scott Mackie from General Motors' perspective. 
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1 Q. Do you know Mr. Mackie's role or title? 

2 A. He was an executive of the General Motors and was 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q. 

Counsel, I don't know his specific title, but 

he was involved in asset sales, asset purchases, 

and what was involved in the negotiations, 

discussions, with the Penske organization with 

respect to this issue, the sale of the brand. 

Is Mr. Mackie a lawyer? 

A. No, sir. He's a businessperson. 

Q. Is Mr. Mackie still with the company? 

A. I do not believe so. I believe he left six 

months to a year ago. Something like that. 

Q. Do you know where he went? 

A. I do not. 

MR. BROWN: Off the record. 

(Off the record.) 

BY MR. BROWN, 

Q. I'd like to ask you about the Old GM voluntary 

extension of the VTi warranty from 3 

years/36,000 miles to 5 years/75,OOO miles. Did 

that voluntary 5/75 extension become a part of 

the standard warranty even though it was not 

delivered at the time of the sale and in the 

glove box? 

I :: A 

~
----

I'll answer your question this way. The 
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extension didn't vary the terms of the warranty 

at all other than their durational and mileage 

limitations. It was an extension of the existing 

warranty. I don't know if that answers your 

question, Counsel, but that's how I look at it. 

Did the 5/75 voluntary extension become a part of 

the standard warranty? 

Well, extended the durational of limitations both 

as to time and mileage, so as to those two terms, 

it extended them. So having extended them as to 

those two terms, it's supplanted what was the 

durational limitations in the existing warranty. C----f-----_. __ , ______________ ' __ . __ ~," ___ ._,_._.,~._,. ______ ,, ____ _ 

13 Q. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 A. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Does New GM consider the voluntary extension to 

5/75 to be a liability arising under the express 

written warranties that were specifically 

identified as warranties and delivered in 

connection with the sale of new vehicles? 

I guess the only thing I can say to that is I 

know we are honoring -- New GM is honoring 

customer warranty claims that are or were made in 

the 5/75 window. So we're honoring them. I 

don't know if we've ever taken a position 

formally one way or another on that. 

I'd probably have to consult with 

Mr. Buonomo and others on the -- you know, the 
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effect of the sale in the bankruptcy, but I know 

we're honoring them as a practical matter. 

,1

1

.---

43 
"·~:··---Wu~n~~d··-el~r··· 'y~:' agree that the 5/75 extension arises 

the original 3/36 warranty? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. 

Q. 

I don't think I'd use the term arise. As I said, 

I think it's an extension or replacement of terms 

in the original warranty. 

Do you have an understanding of the term arising 

under? 

MR. OXFORD: It's vague and ambiguous, 

it's an incomplete question, and it doesn't 

indicate the context. Reported case law 

indicates that legally that term is construed 

differently in different contexts. That being 

said, if you understand the question, you can 

answer. 

THE WITNESS: I know what the English 

words "arises under" mean, to me at least. 

BY MR. BROWN: (-;:~-Jec9};t + +0 
Q. Which is what? 

~lSVo."'- _ 

A. I guess if you used it in context, it 

something that would be, I would say, 

perhaps. 

24 Q. Would you agree that under the class action 

settlement agreement, the terms of the settlement 25 
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Take a look, please, at Exhibit B, which is the 

settlement agreement. 

Okay. 

And specifically paragraph 14 on page 6, which 

defines released claims. 

So page 6. 

Paragraph 14. So let me read a portion of it to 

you. Released claims means any and all past, 

present, future claims related in any way to the 

factual allegations and legal claims that were 

made or could have been made in the action. 

Skipped a few parts there. But you'd agree with 

me that that is at least part of the definition 

of release claims? 

I think you've read Clause B accurately. As I 

read paragraph 14, I don't read this to -- again, 

your word was supplant I think -- the customer's 

ability if the vehicle was in within the 5/75 to 

have the vehicle repaired. I view this as 

releasing claims for breach of warranty and other 

things outlined here based on the factual 

allegations and claims that were made in the 

action. I don't think that supplants or obviates 

the terms of the warranty as you've stated it to 

me at least. 
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19 Q. 

20 

21 
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23 Q. 

24 A. 

25 
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I know in discussions, whether it was with you, 

Counsel, or others in the context of this case, 

we've used the term "fresh failures." I guess 

one definition might be a repair that occurs 

after a date certain in this case, perhaps 

February 3rd, 2009. Is that what you're getting 

at? 

I suppose that's one. I don't want to give you a 

definition if you don't have one in mind. I'll 

move on. 

Looking at this list of reimbursement 

rates for various mileages on page GM Castillo 

E148. 

Yes. 

Would you agree with me those mileages and those 

reimbursements are the same as the Castillo 

settlement? 

Yes. 

Would you agree that the reimbursement rates and 

mileages listed in Exhibit MM arise out of the 

Castillo settlement? 

They are the same. 

So it would be a yes? 

I don't know if they arise out of them, but they 

are the same. 
:---+-----
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the new company, what do we have to do with not 

this but hundreds or other initiatives and 

policies that the new company had to deal with. 

So from my perspective, I don't think anybody 

even focused on it on the lOth at all. 

Do you know whether anyone at New GM ever adopted 

the policy described in Exhibit MM? 

I do not. 

If there was no formal adoption by New GM of the 

policy described in Exhibit MM, do you know why 

it was that New GM was making payment consistent 

with the policy in MM? 

It was in effect. And no one had made the 

decision to send out Exhibit -- was it QQ? -- yet 

to terminate the policy. Yes, QQ. 

Setting aside Exhibit MM, has there been a policy 

in place or procedure or process in place for New 

GM to adopt other Old GM policies? 

I just don't know. 

In other words, when New GM came into existence, 

would it be -- I mean, New GM as of July 10th, 

2009, didn't have any policies of its own because 

it was only one day old. Is that a fair 

statement? 

I would say it's one day old. I would agree with 
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And as far as, you know, documents you're aware 

of that would describe policies on the first day 

of the existence of New GM, that would be the 

ARMSPA and the sale order and perhaps others that 

you can't think of, correct? 

I guess the only way I can answer the question is 

I don't -- you have to look at each individual 

circumstance. I mean, I'm aware of some policies 

of the old company that continued and some that 

did not. And so I think people whether it was 

on the lOth or later that month or later in the 

succeeding months were either not rejecting in 

the bankruptcy sense rejecting, but either 

modifying or replacing certain policies, whatever 

they may be, and continuing with old policies, 

whatever they may be. 

But it really in my mind depended on 

the circumstances of the facts and the policy 

involved. 

And were those sorts of decisions always done on 

an ad hoc case-by-case basis or was there ever a 

more global procedure for identifying which Old 

GM policies and procedures would remain and which 

would be discarded? 
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L. JOSEPH LINES III 
August J.7, 20J.J. 

J. AFFIDAVIT 

2 

_~ .. _ .. ~.~ __ .. __ .~. _~~ ____ .~ ... .I-_ha:v:e .. r:eacL.m¥ __ depQs_~t_ion~,_anG_~t.he-~same--is--\o'rue--· _ ... 

4 and accurate, except for any changes and/or 

5 corrections, if any, as indicated by me on the 

6 Errata sheet(s) attached hereto. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

J.1 

12 

13 Subscribed and sworn to me this J1*" day of 

14 aUfIlJ t , 2011. 

J.5 

16 My commission expires ______ ~=z~j,~/~5L,r/;d~O~/-~-------
J.7 

J.8 ! NOTARY PUBLIC, in and for 

J.9 the State of Michigan. 

20 

2J. 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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